
 
 
 
 
 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL  
 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

Monday, 12 September 2011, at 2.00 
pm 

Ask for: Andrew Tait 

in the Wantsum Room, Sessions 
House, County Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 01622 694342 

 
Membership (9) 
 
Conservative (7): Mr P J Homewood (Chairman), Mr P B Carter, Mrs S V Hohler, 

Mr A J King, MBE, Mr K G Lynes, Mr B J Sweetland  Mrs J Whittle 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mrs T Dean 
 

Labour (1) Mr G Cowan 
 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 
 

1. Substitutes  

2. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

3. Minutes - 13 July 2011 ( 1 - 2) 

4. Dates of meetings in 2012  

 Thursday, 26 January 2012 (am) 
Tuesday, 20 March 2012 (pm) 
Wednesday, 13 June 2012 (am) 
Tuesday, 11 September 2012 (pm) 
Friday, 16 November 2012 (pm)  
 

5. Honorary Freemen ( 3 - 6) 

6. Membership of the Standards Committee and the Independent Remuneration 
Panel ( 7 - 8) 



7. Swale District Advisory Board ( 9 - 30) 

8. Kent and Medway Joint Appointments Committee - Kent Police Authority ( 31 - 32) 

9. Member Development - Application for the South East Employers' Member 
Development Charter Plus  (Oral Update)  

EXEMPT ITEMS 

 (At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such 
items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
 

 
 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
 
Friday, 2 September 2011 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



 

10 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Selection and Member Services Committee held in the 
Bewl Room, Sessions House, County Hall Maidstone on Wednesday, 13 July 2011. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P J Homewood (Chairman), Mrs A D Allen (Substitute for Mr P B 
Carter), Mr D L Brazier (Substitute for Mr B J Sweetland), Mrs S V Hohler, 
Mr A J King, MBE, Mr K G Lynes  Mr T Prater (Substitute for Mrs T Dean) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Sass (Head of Democratic Services), Mrs M Cooper 
(Member Liaison Manager)  Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
23. Minutes - 7 June 2011  
(Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2011 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 
24. Member accommodation  
(Item 4) 
 
(1)  The Committee agreed the recommendations subject to a maximum 
expenditure of £7,000 for the Liberal Democrat Group office relocation and noted the 
Deputy Leader’s commitment to keep the costings under review.   
 
(2)  RESOLVED that approval be given to the expenditure on the Member 

accommodation and facilities changes set out in the report, including a 
maximum of £7,000 for the Liberal Democrat Group office relocation. 

 
25. County Cars  
(Item 5) 
 
(1)  During discussion of this item, the Committee agreed that a further report 
would be made outlining options for the creation of a Sinking Fund to enable the 
purchase of new cars in 2015 and on the recharge costs whenever a county car was 
diverted for personal business.  
 
(2)  RESOLVED that:- 
 

(a) the principle of providing a car service be agreed on the grounds that it 
is an efficient means of travel, given the demands on Members’ and 
Chief Officers’ time;  

 
(b) the service continue to be made available for any Member who may be 

temporarily incapacitated or who does not drive;  
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

11 

(c) the Head of Democratic Services be requested to submit a report to the 
Committee on an annual basis, showing the costs incurred by Members 
using the County car service and taxis;  

 
(d) the variable costs of the service be reduced by at least 10% by the end 

of March 2013; and 
 

(e) the Deputy Leader be asked to report further to the Committee outlining 
options for the creation of a Sinking Fund to enable the purchase of 
new cars in 2015 and on the recharge costs whenever a county car is 
diverted for personal business. 

 
26. Honorary Freemen  
(Item 6) 
 

(1) The Deputy Leader asked the Committee to agree an amended 
recommendation as set out in (2) below.  

 
(2) RESOLVED that the County Council be recommended to introduce the 

principle of awarding the title of Honorary Freemen to persons of distinction 
and to delegate authority to the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council 
and the two Opposition Group Leaders to formulate the criteria for such 
awards for approval by the Committee.   

Carried 6 votes to 0 with 1 Abstention.  
 
 
27. Proposed amendment to the Constitution  
(Item 7) 
 
RESOLVED that the County Council be recommended to amend the terms of 
reference of the Governor Appointments Panel to enable it to appoint and remove 
Authority Governors to and from the Governing Body of Academies.  
 
 

Page 2



By: Alex King - Deputy Leader  
 Peter Homewood – Chairman of the Committee 
 Peter Sass - Head of Democratic Services  
 
To: Selection & Member Services Committee – Monday 12 September 2011 
 
Subject: Honorary Freeman 
 
Classification Unrestricted 
 
FOR DECISION 

 
1. Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, allows the 
Council to confer the titles of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman and Honorary 
Freeman or Freewoman. Honorary Aldermen have to have been serving County 
Councillors, whereas Honorary Freemen do not have to have been elected 
Members.  
 
2. The County Council agreed on 30 April 2009 and 21 July 2011 to utilise 
the powers contained in section 249 of the 1972 Act. Together with the Kent 
Invicta Award, these honorary awards comprise part of a suite of awards and 
appointments that the County Council may choose to make to individuals to 
recognise eminent services.  
 
3. The following criteria have already been agreed for Honorary Aldermen: 

 

• The title may be conferred on persons who have, in the opinion of the 
Council, rendered eminent services to the Council as past Members, 
but who are no longer serving Members; 

 

• There shall be no specific definition of “eminent services”, it being left 
to the discretion of the Council at the time to assess and recognise 
any individual’s contribution to the activities of the Council and the 
wellbeing of the county of Kent; 

 

• Nominees would normally require a minimum period of 12 years past 
service as a Member of the Council; 

 

• Nominees have to receive the support of not less than two-thirds of 
the Members voting thereon at a special Council meeting convened 
for the purpose; 

 

• Nominations can be made by any Group Leader.  However, before 
proceeding, officers should establish with the Members, via their party 
groups, whether or not the nomination would be likely to receive 
support; 

 

• Honorary Aldermen should be invited to attend relevant civic and 
ceremonial events, including the Annual Council meeting, the 
Chairman’s Civic Reception and any future appointment of Honorary 
Aldermen; 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



• The status of Honorary Alderman carries no special right to attend 
meetings of the Council or its Committees or to receive any 
allowances or payments to which serving Members are entitled.  
However, at the discretion of the Chairman, a nominee for Honorary 
Alderman may (if present) be invited to respond to the vote conferring 
that status; 

 
Honorary Freemen 

 
4. As indicated above, the Local Government Act 1972 has now been 
amended to allow local authorities to confer the award of Honorary Freemen to 
“persons of distinction”, who have rendered eminent services to the local 
authority “place or area”. This means that the title may be given to individuals 
who have not served as local authority Members. At its meeting on 21 July 
2011, the County Council approved the principle of awarding the title of 
Honorary Freeman to persons of distinction and delegated authority to the 
Leader, Deputy Leader of the Council and the two Opposition Group Leaders to 
formulate and agree the criteria for such awards.  
 
During August, Group Leaders were consulted on the proposed criteria, which 
are set out below: 

 

• The title may be conferred on persons who have, in the opinion of the 
Council, rendered eminent services to the County of Kent, whether or 
not they have been elected Members of the Authority; 

 

• There shall be no specific definition of “eminent services”, it being left 
to the discretion of the Council at the time to assess and recognise 
any individual’s contribution to the activities and the wellbeing of the 
county of Kent. This may result from an extended period of public or 
charitable service for or on behalf of the Council or the County of 
Kent, or alternatively, the result of a single, highly prestigious 
achievement, such as winning an Olympic medal, Nobel Prize or 
other national or international prize/award.  

 

• Nominees have to receive the support of not less than two-thirds of 
the Members voting thereon at a special Council meeting convened 
for the purpose; 

 

• Nominations can be made by any Group Leader.  However, before 
proceeding, officers should establish with the Members, via their party 
groups, whether or not the nomination would be likely to receive 
support; 

 

• Honorary Freemen should be invited to attend relevant civic and 
ceremonial events, including the Annual Council meeting, the 
Chairman’s Civic Reception, and any future appointment of Honorary 
Freemen; 

 

• The status of Honorary Freeman carries no special right to attend or 
address meetings of the Council or its Committees or to receive any 
allowances or payments to which serving Members are entitled.  

Page 4



However, at the discretion of the Chairman, a nominee for Honorary 
Freeman may (if present) be invited to respond to the vote conferring 
that status. 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 
The Committee is invited approve the criteria for the award of Honorary Freeman as 
set out in paragraph 4 above. 

 

 
Peter Sass: Head of Democratic Services  
 
Officer Contact:  Andrew Tait 
Democratic Services Officer(01622) 694342 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



By:   Alex King – Deputy Leader 
  Peter Homewood – Chairman of the Committee 
  Peter Sass, Head of Democratic Services   
 
To:     Selection and Member Services Committee – 12 September 2011 
 
Subject:  Membership of the Standards Committee and Member 

Remuneration Panel  
  
 

 
Summary:  The existing four year terms of office for the independent 

members of the Standards Committee and Member 
Remuneration Panel expire at the end of October 2011. Members 
are eligible subject to re-appointment to serve for a maximum of 
eight years. The Committee is asked to recommend to the County 
Council the extension of the Independent Members’ appointments 
from 1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012. 

 

 
Introduction 
 

1. The current terms of office for the Independent Members of both the 
Standards Committee (Roberta MacCrone, Peter Gammon and Nadra 
Ahmed) and the Member Remuneration Panel (Fiona Leathers, Linda 
Frampton and Elizabeth Tullberg) expire at the end of October 2011. At its 
meeting in November, 2007, when the existing independent members were 
appointed, the County Council agreed that Independent Members may serve 
no more than two consecutive four year terms before standing down. All of the 
current independent Members are eligible for re-appointment, having served 
only one term. 
 
Proposed extension of the current terms of office 
 
2. At the end of the four year term the County Council would normally 
undertake a public recruitment process to appoint/re-appoint independent 
members to both the Standards Committee and Member Remuneration 
Panel. 
 
3. However the Deputy Leader has suggested that the independent 
members of the Standards Committee and the Member Remuneration Panel 
should be approached to establish whether or not they would be willing to 
continue their appointment for a further 12 months from 1 November 2011, 
without publicly advertising the positions. This would ensure continuity and 
better enable the Council to respond to the new Standards Committee regime 
proposed in the Localism and Devolution Bill and the ongoing review of the 
governance and structure of the democratic framework of the Council. 
 
4. The Committee is advised that all of the Independent Members of both 
the Standards Committee and the Member Remuneration Panel have 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



confirmed that they would be willing to continue with their current appointment 
until 31 October 2012. 
 

 
Recommendation: That the Committee recommend to the County Council the 
extension to the appointment of Mrs N Ahmed, OBE, DL, Mr P Gammon, MBE and 
Miss R MacCrone to the Standards Committee and Mrs L Frampton, Mrs F Leathers 
and Mrs E Tullberg to the Independent Remuneration Panel for a further 12 months 
from 1 November 2011 until 31 October 2012. 
 

 
 
Peter Sass: Head of Democratic Services  
 
Officer Contact:  Andrew Tait 
Democratic Services Officer(01622) 694342 
 

Page 8



By: Alex King - Deputy Leader  
 Peter Homewood – Chairman of the Committee 
 Peter Sass - Head of Democratic Services  
 
To: Selection & Member Services Committee – Monday 12 September 2011 
 
Subject: Swale District Advisory Board 
 
Classification Unrestricted 
 
FOR DECISION 

 
Introduction 

 
1. Kent County Council has received a letter from the Independent 
Chairman of the Swale District Advisory Board, dated 24 August, 2011 (copy 
attached at Appendix 1), asking KCC to consider appointing one of its serving 
Swale Members to join the membership of the Advisory Board. The role of the 
Board is to be responsible for the governance and strategic direction of 
Children’s Centres in the Swale District area. A copy of the Advisory Board’s 
Governance Arrangements is also attached at Appendix 2.     
 
Nomination 

 
2. Following discussions with the Chairman of the Committee, Mr Ken Pugh 
has expressed an interest in being appointed as KCC’s representative to the 
Advisory Board.      
 

Recommendation: 
 
3. The Committee is requested to make an appointment to the Swale District 
Advisory Board.  

 

 
Peter Sass: Head of Democratic Services  
 
Officer Contact:  Andrew Tait 
Democratic Services Officer(01622) 694342 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Peter Sass  
Head of Democratic Services  
Business Strategy & Support  
Sessions House  
County Hall  
Maidstone  
Kent ME14 1XQ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Kent County Council  
Swale Avenue of Remembrance 
Sittingbourne   
ME10 4DD 
 

                       Tel: 0300 333 6346 
 Ask for: Mr Sonny Butler  
 E-mail: Sonny.Butler@kent.gov.uk  
 Our ref: SWALE DAB 
 Date: 02 September 2011 
 
 
 
Dear Peter, 
 
Swale District Advisory Board  
 
I am writing on behalf of Swale District Advisory Board seeking your support in conveying this 
correspondence to Kent County Council - Members and Select Committee in nominating a County 
Councillor of the Swale area to join the membership of the Swale District Advisory Board. 
 
The Swale Advisory Board has been established since September 2010 and is a statutory 
requirement for Local Authorities. The Swale District Advisory Board membership is still in its 
infancy in attracting the appropriate membership from partner organisations both statutory and from 
the voluntary sector in Swale District. Membership also comprises of our parent representatives in 
Swale Children’s Centres who are an integral part of Swale District Advisory Board. 
 
The Advisory Board currently meets once per quarter and meetings will not exceed no more than 
four meetings per financial year (1 April – 31 March) unless in an exceptional circumstances.  The 
Advisory Board has a number of named steering groups who report and feedback in to the 
Advisory Board which is ultimately responsible for the Governance and Strategic direction of Swale 
Children’s Centres. 
 
I hope that you are able to support this request and I also attach a copy of the Governance 
Arrangements for Kent Children’s Centres. Please refer to page 8 of the document and paragraph 
2.4.2 which details the statutory sector membership of the District Advisory Board which includes 
Local and County Councillors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



The next Swale District advisory Board meeting is Thursday 13 October 2011 at 2.30pm. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Sonny Butler 
Independent Chairman, Swale District Advisory Board     
On behalf of Swale District Advisory Board  
 
Enc. 
 
Copy:   Lee-Anne Farach – Swale Preventative Services Manager   
  Jenny Whittle – Lead Member Specialist Children’s Services  
 

Page 12



1

Governance Arrangements 
for Sure Start Children’s 

Centres in Kent 

August 2010 

Page 13



2

Governance Arrangements for Sure Start Children’s Centres in Kent 

1.  Introduction 

1.1. Sure Start Children’s Centres are part of the local system of universal children’s 
services, providing easy access to a range of community health services, parenting 
and family support, Early Years Foundation Stage provision and links to training 
and employment opportunities for families with children under the age of five. They 
are a key mechanism for delivering the Government’s Every Child Matters initiative 
to improve outcomes for young children, while reducing inequalities between the 
most disadvantaged children and their peers.  By March 2011, all of Kent’s 
children’s centres will be fully operational, ensuring all children under five and their 
families have access to integrated Children’s Centre service provision. The range 
and extent of services offered by Children’s Centres will vary according to local 
need but all centres will offer some level of core activity outlined above.   

1.2. The 2009 Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning (ASCL) Act amends the 
Childcare Act 2006 by defining Sure Start Children’s Centres in law, and places a 
duty on local authorities with regard to the development and delivery of children’s 
services through Sure Start Children’s Centres. The ASCL Act also puts local 
authorities under a statutory duty to make governance arrangements to secure that 
each of its children’s centres is under the remit of an advisory board.

1.3. While it is recognised that the precise governance arrangements for children’s 
centres will vary from centre to centre and District to District, reflecting local 
circumstances, the need for effective governance arrangements is common to all 
centres.  Set within the over-arching context of Children’s Trust arrangements (see 
diagram below), Children’s Centre advisory boards will play a key role in the 
governance of centres at locality / District level.   

1.4. The diagram below shows how Children’s Centre governance arrangements link in 
to the Children’s Trust structure, providing a line of accountability and a means of 
critical support and challenge for Children’s Centres.  The governance of children’s 
centres in Kent will be achieved via a two tier structure.  There will be 12 District 
Advisory Boards (DABs).  These will be supported by Local Steering Groups 
(LSGs) which have a direct interest in overseeing the services being delivered at 
each individual Children’s Centre.  These Local Steering Groups are already 
operating around Kent, sometimes known also as steering boards or 
implementation groups.  They in turn rely on feedback from the Parent Forums 
which represent the views of Children’s Centres’ users – parents, carers and their 
children under 5 in each locality. 

1.5. This two tier governance structure is based on the conclusion that, given the 
number of Children’s Centres across Kent (and within each individual District), a 
single tier system would be unable to fulfil the detailed scrutiny role on its own.  The 
Advisory Boards themselves are likely to be too removed from the day to day 
activities taking place in each centre.  They will need the Local Steering Groups to 
undertake much of the scrutiny role on their behalf, particularly in relation to the 
self-evaluation and performance management processes.  The District Advisory 
Boards will rely on information and assessments from their Local Steering Groups 
when making judgements, and this will allow the Board to concentrate on its more 
over-arching, strategic role of ensuring good outcomes across the District. 

Page 14



3

1.6. The two tier governance structure is therefore intended to provide crucial support 
and challenge for Children’s Centres as they seek to deliver high quality services to 
the children and parents / carers in their localities as well as helping and advising 
those managing the Centres to prepare for their Ofsted inspections under the terms 
of the ASCL Act 2009. 

1.7. Each part of the governance structure will have its own particular role to play.  
Parent Forums are for parents and carers to be involved in local decision-making 
and also provide a mechanism for ensuring that Children’s Centres meet local 
needs.  The Forums give an opportunity for informal consultation and enable 
individuals to voice opinions, discuss proposed plans and feed views up to the 
Local Advisory Board which will also have parent representation within its 
membership.

1.8. The Local Steering Group (LSG) – known in many areas as a Steering Board or 
Implementation Group – is the body that provides critical support to the 
management of the Children’s Centre and its delivery of services.  It will do this by 
helping the Manager prepare the Centre’s business / development / delivery plan, 
ensuring that it is fit for purpose, is resourced, and reflects the needs of the local 0-
5 population and their families.  The LSG’s membership will include local service 
providers from the various key agencies who are familiar with the local area and 
the community served by the Centre.  It will work closely with the Children’s Centre 
Manager to achieve continuous improvement in the quality of services being 
provided, and help, when necessary, to prepare the Centre for its Ofsted 
inspection.  The LSG will play an important role in the Centre’s self-evaluation 
process (via the Self-Evaluation Form or SEF) and in the overall performance 
management of the Centre.  It will have a balanced membership drawn from 
parents as well as the voluntary and statutory sectors and the LSG will periodically 
need to review levels of parent satisfaction with the services being delivered.  It will 
also provide information and advice to the District Advisory Board to enable that 
body to evaluate Children’s Centre services and performance across the District. 

1.9. The District Advisory Board (DAB), as its name suggests, takes more of a strategic, 
district-wide monitoring role.  Its role will be to provide strategic direction for its 
Children’s Centres in line with the Children and Young People’s Plan (C&YPP) 
adopted by the Kent Children’s Trust.  It is intended that the 2011-2014 C&YPP will 
adopt a very strong localities approach and include 12 District plans. The DAB will 
receive Children’s Centre Managers’ reports (or an overall summary of these 
reports) to monitor how effectively the Centres are delivering early childhood 
services to families with children under 5 across the district.  It will scrutinize and 
sign off business / development / delivery plans and will evaluate the impact of 
Children’s Centre services for families across the district as part of its performance 
management role.  This will be achieved via consideration of the individual SEF 
summary reports submitted to the DAB by each Local Steering Group.  The District 
Advisory Board will also monitor and sign off any service level agreements (SLAs) 
submitted to them by the LSGs that relate to services delivered by agency partners 
in each Children’s Centre catchment area.  Above all, the District Advisory Board 
will represent each Children’s Centre with Ofsted, the local authority and other 
statutory agencies as appropriate, supported where necessary by members of the 
relevant Local Steering Group.  Each DAB will be accountable for Children’s Centre 
service delivery to its own Local Children’s Trust Board. 

Page 15



4

1.10. The relationship between the District Advisory Board and the Local Steering 
Groups may well vary from District to District with the responsibilities being shared 
between the two bodies.  The most important consideration is that the functions of 
an advisory board, as set down in the legislation (see paragraph 1.2) and the 
accompanying statutory guidance, are fully reflected in the arrangements existing 
within each district. 

1.11. From October 2010 the existing Local Children’s Services Partnerships (LCSPs), 
introduced in 2008, will be pairing up and working towards the formation of 12 new 
Local Children’s Trust Boards (LCTBs).  These will follow established District 
boundaries.  The management of Kent’s Children’s Centres will be via these 
LCTBs.  They will have the task of ensuring that best practice is carried forward 
and resources best utilised across their respective areas.  It will be the 
responsibility of each District Advisory Board to report to its Local Children’s Trust 
Board concerning the delivery of Children’s Centre services and highlighting 
significant areas of strength and weakness.  The DAB should in particular engage 
with the representative of Children’s Centres on the Local Children’s Trust Board to 
maintain and improve the quality of services for parents and children under 5 
throughout each District.  LCTBs are accountable to the Kent Children’s Trust. 

1.12. The Kent Children’s Trust (KCT) was set up in September 2006, and brings 
together all services for children and young people in Kent, based on the duty to 
co-operate in the Children’s Act 2004, to focus on improving life chances for all 
children and young people.  The 2009 Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and 
Learning Act placed the Children’s Trust Board on a statutory footing from 1st April 
2010 and this means that responsibility for preparing, publishing and revising the 
Children and Young People’s Plan (C&YPP) is transferred from the Local Authority 
to the Children’s Trust Board and all partner agencies.  The Trust has a key role in 
ensuring there are services that provide early intervention and preventative support 
to children, young people and their families.  The KCT Executive Commissioning 
Group meet 8 times a year and provide the County Board with Strategic direction. 

KENT CHILDREN’S 

TRUST (KCT) 

Parent Forums

Children’s Centre Local Steering Groups (LSGs)

Children’s Centre District Advisory Boards (DABs) 

Local Children’s Trust Boards (LCTBs) 

Page 16



5

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

1.13. The Childcare Act does not require one advisory board per Children’s Centre.  
Where it makes sense locally to do so, several Children’s Centres can cluster 
together and share an advisory board.  But there must be an advisory board that 
performs the role for each Children’s Centre, even if that advisory board also does 
so for other Children’s Centres. 

1.14. The legislation defines the role of advisory boards by saying: “an advisory board 
must provide advice and assistance for the purpose of ensuring the effective 
operation of the children’s centre within its remit”. The role is to support and advise 
those responsible for operating the centre, usually the centre manager, who will be 
responsible to the local authority or other body operating the centre.  There is a 
clear distinction between governance and the detailed day to day operational or 
management activity and control of the centre budget.

1.15. The legislation does not create advisory boards as distinct legal bodies, with legal 
personality. Advisory boards do not have their own legal identity and will not be 
given any particular legal powers or duties.

1.16. Advisory boards will not be in a position to commission services, control the 
children’s centre budget or take decisions relating to day to day operations or 
management of the Children’s Centre. 

1.17. In line with Sure Start Children’s Centre guidance and local Trust arrangements, 
the advisory board will be a sub-group of the Local Children’s Trust.  The 
arrangements for this will be a matter for local interpretation but Children’s Centre 
advisory boards will have clear mechanisms for feeding into the wider Children’s 
Trust governance framework.

1.18. Where two or more centres are covered by one advisory board, individual centres 
must have a Local Steering Group to ensure local, relevant issues are addressed.
Local mechanisms will need to be in place to ensure that individual LSGs feed into 
the over-arching District Advisory Board.

1.19. There is no formal requirement on centres to have Parents’ Forums. However, 
consideration must be given to how centres secure wider parental involvement in 
the governance of the centre.  This can often be achieved most effectively through 
a Parents’ Forum, but there will need to be local mechanisms that are clear and 
visible and ensure the views of parents feed into the overarching governance 
arrangements.

1.20. During 2009, the Governance Working Group, made up of representative children’s 
centre managers and locality co-ordinators, together with Kent County Council 
(KCC) officers from the central Children’s Centre Project Team met regularly to 
develop the basis for this governance framework.  The framework itself draws on 
the 2009 ASCL Act, previous DCSF Governance Guidance for Sure Start 
Children's Centres and Extended Schools and on support materials from Together 
for Children, an agency working on behalf of the then-DCSF to support local 
authorities in delivering the CC agenda. The framework has been developed in 
consultation with KCC’s School Governance Unit. 

Page 17



6

1.21. This framework aims to set out the core purpose of both District Advisory Boards 
and Local Steering Groups in terms of Children’s Centre governance, and includes: 

 Membership 
 Terms of Reference 
 Meeting arrangements  
 Suggested areas for training and development for Advisory Board 
 Statement of values and declaration of interest (Appendix 1) 

2.0  District Advisory Boards  (DABs) 

2.1 Core Purpose

2.1.1  The role of the District Advisory Board is to: 
 ensure that the big strategic issues are taken to the Local Children’s Trust;
 provide advice and assistance for the purpose of ensuring the effective 

operation of the Children’s Centres within its remit; 
 ensure high quality challenge and scrutiny of the self-evaluation process and to 

support children’s centres in their improvement ambitions; 
 support Local Steering Groups and managers to lead and deliver some of the 

changes required for improvement; 
 to work with Local Steering Groups and Children’s Centre Managers to identify 

priorities through effective consultation; 
 To receive and sign off the individual Children’s Centres’ business, development 

and delivery plans ensuring that they are fit for purpose, are resourced and 
reflect the needs of the local 0-5 population and their families; 

 evaluate the impact of Children’s Centre services for families in need by up-
dating, reviewing and refreshing self-review and self-assessment as part of the 
performance management arrangements for each Children’s Centre; 

 ensure the services on offer meet the local needs and contribute to improving 
children’s outcomes across the District; 

 ensure that parents/carers are key drivers for Children’s Centre services.  

2.1.2   District Advisory Boards can also be involved in: 
 staffing processes such as the appointment of a Children’s Centre Manager; 
 advising on planning and commissioning; budgets and resources; 
 leading on consulting and involving the local community. 

(Adapted from the Governance Guidance for Sure Start Children's Centres and 
Extended Schools)

2.2 Membership

2.2.1 The District Advisory Board needs to be large enough to be representative and not 
so large that it becomes unwieldy. The 2010 statutory guidance relating to the 
ASCL Act suggests that a board of around 10-15 members is an appropriate and 
workable size. 

2.2.2 Parental members of the District Advisory Board should as far as possible be drawn 
from the local community, and efforts made to involve disadvantaged parents as 
members.  Where one DAB  exists for more than one Children’s Centre (which will 

Page 18



7

be the norm in Kent) then each Children’s Centre must have their own opportunities 
for seeking parents’ views in a way that can be represented to the advisory board.
This can be achieved through parental involvement at Local Steering Group level. 

2.2.3 The District Advisory Board should have an independent chair.  This person should 
ideally be someone who is not from (a) a body with accountability for Children’s 
Centres or an organisation commissioned to run a Children’s Centre on behalf of 
the accountable body; (b) an agency with responsibility for providing “core offer” 
statutory services (i.e. KCC, Health/PCT and Job Centre Plus); or (c) an 
organisation that is deriving a financial benefit as a result of Children’s Centres’ 
commissioning services from them.  In particular, the Chair cannot be a Children’s 
Centre Manager, a Children’s Centre Locality Co-ordinator or a Preventative 
Services Manager, given their direct responsibility for managing the Centres. The 
Chair should have the casting vote if an issue arises on which the Board is unable 
to reach a decision.  The Chair will also need to ensure that there are good links at 
all times between the Children’s Centre Manager, the local authority and other 
agencies providing services at the Children’s Centre.

2.2.4. Sure Start guidance suggests that the Children’s Centre Manager should always be 
given the option of attending the District Advisory Board for all or some of the time. 
The Children’s Centre Manager is not a DAB member, but reports to the Board (it is 
expected that the Children’s Centre Managers will provide a written report to the 
District Advisory Board).  Where there is a Children’s Centre Locality Co-ordinator, 
he / she may report to the Board on behalf of the other Children’s Centre Managers, 
with the latter attending for specific agenda items, where appropriate.  Like the 
Children’s Centre Managers, Locality Co-ordinators report to the DAB but are not 
members of it. 

2.3. Membership Criteria

2.3.1. Representatives must have a strategic role within their organisation/agency at the 
local level and be of sufficient seniority to enable them to: 

 Speak for their agency with authority 
 Commit their agency on service development and practice matters 
 Influence the development of their agency’s practices 
 Ensure that children’s needs are presented in agency decision-making regarding 

resources
 Contribute to the development of robust and effective monitoring and 

performance functions.

(Kent Children’s Trust, Local Children’s Services Partnership, Partnership 
Agreement, September 08)  

2.4. Core Membership:

2.4.1 Parents/Carers. The District Advisory Board should consist of parent 
representatives, preferably from each Children’s Centre area. These 
representatives are representing the interest of all families within their catchment 
area.

Page 19



8

2.4.2  Statutory Sector- this may include: 
 JobCentre Plus Manager 
 PCT/NHS Trust to include: 

o Health Visiting/School Nursing  
o Midwifery 
o Speech and Language 

 Children’s Social Services 
 Preventative Services Manager  
 Local Children’s Trust Board representative 
 Early Years Services 
 Extended Services  
 Local Council  
 Police 
 Head Teacher 
 Local  or County Councillors 

It may be that all the statutory agencies meet to decide which 3 or 4 agencies will 
represent the statutory sector on the District Advisory Board and how they will 
communicate with each other. 

2.4.3 Voluntary Sector- this may include: (to act as a representative of the sector rather 
than one agency).

 Homestart 
 Parent Consortium  
 NCMA 
 Faith Representative  
 Local Community Group 
 Childcare Provision  

It may be that all the voluntary agencies meet to decide which 3 or 4 agencies will 
represent the voluntary sector on the District Advisory Board and how they will 
communicate with each other. 

2.4.4.  There must be at least one member from each Children’s Centre Local Steering 
Group on the District Advisory Board.

2.4.5  The District Advisory Board can co-opt members as and when this is required.  

2.4.6  The District Advisory Board may decide to establish sub-groups which have a
particular focus and can engage a wider range of agencies. Examples of sub-
groups may include service delivery, governance and finance and inclusion and 
diversity. Where possible the sub-groups would consist of at least one member of 
the District Advisory Board. The sub-groups will feed into the District Advisory Board 
and be required to provide regular reports.

2.5 Responsibilities 

Representatives on the District Advisory Board will be expected to undertake the 
following roles and responsibilities.

 Represent their agencies and bring experience and knowledge about other 
sectors and organisations; however, their primary duty will be to act in the interest 
of local children, young people and families. 

Page 20



9

 Ensure that the ‘duty to co-operate’ is understood and acted upon within their 
agency.

 Ensure that staff within their agency who work in the locality and who have contact 
with children are aware of their safeguarding responsibilities. 

 Ensure that actions to support the delivery of Children’s Centre services are 
clearly understood and firmly embedded within their agency. 

 Ensure their agency makes an appropriate contribution to the resourcing of the 
Children’s Centre. 

 Ensure that the reports, procedures and decisions of the District Advisory Board 
are disseminated in an effective way within their agency and acted upon. 

 Contribute to the development of robust and effective monitoring and performance 
arrangements and be open to scrutiny. 

 Bring key multi-agency strategic issues to the attention of the Advisory Board. 

 Commit to attending District Advisory Board meetings – if members fail to attend 
more than two consecutive Board meetings without good reason they will be 
disqualified.

 Nominate a named deputy who also meets the membership criteria to attend up to 
one meeting a year on the member’s behalf.

 Read all documents prior to meetings and consult with appropriate personnel 
within their agency as appropriate. 

 Be available for consultation between meetings to facilitate the business of the 
District Advisory Board. 

 Declare any interest in a particular topic or issue preferably before a meeting. 

 Support the work of the District Advisory Board by identifying people within the 
organisation to join sub-groups or to undertake any necessary research or 
additional work. 

 Actively contribute to external inspection activity of children’s services in their 
area.

 (Adapted from Kent Children’s Trust, Local Children’s Services Partnership, 
Partnership Agreement, September 08)  

2.6. Terms of Reference

 To work with KCC and partners on the development of Children’s Centres within 
the District and ensure the delivery of high quality services in accordance with 
relevant guidance and legislation 

 To provide challenge and scrutiny of the self-evaluation process and to support 
children’s centres in their improvement ambitions.

 To provide scrutiny of the way in which the Children’s Centres manage their 
resources to meet the needs of users and the wider community and to 
encourage efficient and effective use of those resources. 

 To receive and sign off  the individual Children’s Centre SEFs and business 
plans ensuring that they are fit for purpose, are resourced and reflect the needs 
of the local 0 – 5 population and their families. 

 To receive, consider summary reports from Children’s Centre Managers 
ensuring that they include evaluative information, and to highlight and consider 
challenges identified within the District. 

 To support and challenge the Children Centre Managers and Local Steering 
Groups in monitoring the performance of the Children’s Centres in meeting 
outcomes required by the national indicators and Every Child Matters (ECM) 
outcomes as measured by the self-evaluation forms (SEFs) and data collection.  

Page 21



10

 To promote the work of the Children’s Centres throughout the District and to 
represent Children Centres when required 

 To ensure that every Children’s Centre is fully inclusive and that all children and 
their families are able to participate in all activities.  

 To ensure there is effective sharing of data between agencies in relation to the 
children and families who use the District’s Children’s Centres. 

 To contribute to the reshaping of services for children under 5 and their families 
across the District. 

 To take on the role of critical friend to Local Steering Groups and to contribute to 
a culture of challenge and support, in order to provide consistently high quality 
services to families across the District. 

 To carry out the above responsibilities in an objective, open and transparent way 
and to conduct all business by showing respect for colleagues, staff and 
stakeholders.

 Terms of reference and membership will be reviewed annually.

 Contribute to Ofsted inspections of the District’s Children’s Centres. 

2.7.  Meeting Arrangements 

 The board will meet a minimum 4 times a year. 

 A minute taker must be provided by one of the Children’s Centres for the 
meeting.

 Agendas and reports for all meetings should be sent one working week prior to 
the meeting.

 Arrangements must be put in place to allow parents to attend District Advisory 
Board meetings, including childcare arrangements and costs of travel and 
training.

2.8.  Training Programme

Suggested areas for training and development for District Advisory Board members 
are as follows: 

 Working as a team. 

 Effective meetings. 

 Terms of reference. 

 Roles and responsibilities. 

 Reaching the most excluded groups. 

 The voice of your parents. 

 Your children’s voices. 

 ECM outcomes and performance indicators.

 Interpreting reports/data.

 Performance management, monitoring and evaluation.

 Improving outcomes.

Page 22



11

 Challenge and support/critical friend role.

 Continual improvement.

 Health and Safety. 

 Safeguarding responsibilities.

Page 23



12

3.0  Local Steering Groups  (LSGs) 

3.1. Core Purpose

3.1.1  To design, deliver, monitor and evaluate services at every stage in the development 
and delivery of the Children’s Centre. To work closely with the Children’s Centre 
Manager to drive continuous improvement of high quality services that impact on 
the lives of local families and improve outcomes, as defined in Every Child Matters.  

3.1.2. This will include looking at: 

 local issues – leading on consulting and involving the local community 
 service delivery 
 operational issues 
 staffing processes such as the appointment of a Children’s Centre Manager; 
 improving links with all schools and early years providers within the catchment 

area
 how the Children’s Centre gets involved with what is happening within the 

community
 supporting the Children’s Centre Manager in  achieving full core offer status (if 

applicable)
 supporting the Children’s Centre Manager in the self evaluation form and 

business plan 
 linking with Extended Services to promote joined up delivery 

3.1.3. It is envisaged that there would be one Local Steering Group per Children’s Centre 
but where two Children’s Centres are serving the same community, it may make 
more sense to have one Local Steering Group overseeing two or more Children’s 
Centres.  Local Steering Groups have in many areas also been known in the past 
as steering or implementation boards. 

3.2 Membership

3.2.1. The Local Steering Group needs to be large enough to be representative and not so 
large that it becomes unwieldy.  It is suggested that a group of around 10-15 
members is an appropriate and workable number. Members of this group need to 
be familiar with local issues and work with the local community.  Parents / Carers 
should always be represented on the Local Steering Group. 

3.2.2  Membership is open to all service providers that have input to Children’s Centre 
families and may include:  
 Extended services co-ordinators  
 Housing  
 Linked and all other early education and childcare providers
 Childminders 
 Voluntary sector providers 
 Residents association  
 PCT/NHS 
 Community Police Officer/Warden 
 Representatives from all schools in the catchment area, e.g. Head Teachers, 

Governors, Family Liaison Officers, Parent Support Advisers 

Page 24



13

 Private Sector 
 Local Council  
 Faith Groups 
 Representatives of staff from the Children’s Centre 

3.2.3  The Local Steering Group should have an independent chair. However, it is the 
responsibility of the Children’s Centre Manager to establish the Local Steering 
Group and it may be that the Children’s Centre Manager chairs the first few 
meetings, until an independent chair has been identified and if necessary 
undertaken relevant training.  An independent chair for a Local Steering Group 
would be someone who does not have direct management responsibility for a 
Children’s Centre. 

3.2.4  A job description for the Local Steering Group Chair can be found in the Appendix.

3.3 Responsibilities 

Representatives on the Local Steering Group will be expected to undertake the 
following roles and responsibilities.
 Represent their agencies and bring experience and knowledge about other 

sectors and organisations to the Local Steering Group.  
 Ensure that minutes and any reports of the Local Steering Group are 

disseminated in an effective way within their agency and acted upon. 
 Contribute to the development of robust and effective monitoring and 

performance arrangements and be open to scrutiny. 
 Commit to attending Local Steering Group meetings. 
 Read all documents prior to meetings and consult with appropriate personnel 

within their agency as appropriate. 
 Be available for consultation between meetings to facilitate the business of the 

Local Steering Group.  
 (Adapted from Kent Children’s Trust, Local Children’s Services Partnership, 
Partnership Agreement, September 08)  

3.4. Terms of Reference

 To support the Children’s Centre Manager in monitoring the SEF and Business 
Plan, ensuring they are fit for purpose and reflect the needs of the local 0-5 
population and their families. 

 To ensure effective working relationships are developed with other initiatives to 
ensure integrated delivery of services in the local community and best use of 
resources.

 To support the re-shaping of services on a local level to better meet local needs.

 To link with the extended schools agenda.  

 To ensure work with families, members of the local community and other 
stakeholders reflects evidence of local need. This will include ensuring all 
sections of the community are reached. 

  To ensure services are delivered, monitored and evaluated and work objectives 
are achieved in line with implementation and delivery plans. To access support 
and advice as necessary. 

 To receive and consider progress reports from the Children’s Centre Manager. 

Page 25



14

 To ensure that the Centre is fully inclusive and that all children and their families 
are able to participate in all activities.

 To proactively promote and publicise the work of the Children’s Centre and its 
programme of activities in the catchment area.

 To be involved in recruitment of key staff and have representation on 
appropriate interview panels. 

 To ensure that resources are being used in the best way to meet the needs of 
the community.

 To ensure there is effective sharing of data between agencies in relation to 
children and families using the Children’s Centre.  

 To bring issues with strategic implications for the District as a whole to the 
attention of the District Advisory Board. 

 Contribute to Ofsted inspections of the Children’s Centre. 

 To ensure the Children’s Centre meets health and safety guidelines and 
safeguarding procedures are in place.

 To monitor and make recommendations for improvements to the building so that 
it best meets the needs of families.  

 To ensure there are clear lines of communication with the parent forum.  

 To consider formal complaints and agree actions in response to complaints.  

 Members will ensure that actions to support the delivery of Children Centre 
service are clearly understood and firmly embedded within their agency. 

 Terms of reference and membership will be reviewed annually.

In addition, where the Children’s Centre is on a school site; 

 To ensure there is an effective working relationship and communication strategy 
with the school and its Governing Body.  

 To ensure there are effective systems in place to clarify roles and 
responsibilities regarding the school, Children’s Centre and school site.

Page 26



15

3.5 Meeting Arrangements 

 It is the responsibility of the Local Steering Group and Children’s Centre 
Manager to ensure the frequency of meetings is adequate and appropriate.

 A minute taker from the Children’s Centre must be provided for the meeting. 

 Agendas and reports for all meetings should be sent one working week prior to 
the meeting.

 Arrangements must be put in place to allow parents to attend Local Steering 
Group meetings, including childcare arrangements and costs of travel and 
training.

Page 27



16

Appendix 1 

Statement of values and declaration of interest 

All District Advisory Board and Local Steering Group members should declare any interest 
they may have in anything under discussion and leave the meeting if asked by the chair.
This would not normally include interests of a strategic or general professional nature that 
would contribute to and enrich partnership work.  However it would include, for example, a 
discussion of business, contracts or employment opportunities affecting the individual or 
his/her close family, or any other matters where there is any potential for personal gain or 
a conflict of interests.  In these situations members of the Local Steering Group would be 
expected to leave the meeting for that item.  The rule is, ‘when in doubt declare openly and 
leave immediately’. 

The Kent Children’s Trust and Local Children’s Trusts have adopted the Nolan 
Committee’s principles of public life. It is advised that both District Advisory Board and 
Local Steering Group members have regard to these principles in relation to Children’s 
Centre business. These are:

Selflessness: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for themselves, their 
family or their friends.
Integrity: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other 
obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them in the 
performance of their official duties.  
Objectivity: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of 
public office should make choices on merit.
Accountability:  Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to 
the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.
Openness:  Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions 
and actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict 
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.
Honesty:  Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects 
the public interest. 
Leadership:  Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and example. 
(Kent Children’s Trust, Local Children’s Services Partnership, Partnership Agreement, 
September 08) 

Page 28



17

Appendix 2: Tools  [  To Follow  ] 

These Tools are in the process of being developed and will include: 

 A Sample agenda 
 District Advisory Board Chair job description 
 A Sample Quarterly Summary Report Template for submission to District Advisory 

Board
 Parent Information Sheet 
 Independent Chair Appointment Process 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



By: Alex King - Deputy Leader  
 Peter Homewood – Chairman of the Committee 
 Peter Sass - Head of Democratic Services  
 
To: Selection & Member Services Committee – Monday 12 September 2011 
 
Subject: Kent and Medway Joint Appointments Committee – Kent Police Authority 
 
Classification Unrestricted 
 
FOR DECISION 

 
1. At its meeting on 14 June 2011, the Kent and Medway Joint 
Appointments Committee – Kent Police Authority approved the following Terms 
of Reference to reflect the formal role of the Joint Committee, to be 
recommended to each Council for adoption: 
 

“The Joint Appointments Committee is appointed jointly by Kent 
County Council and Medway Council under paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 
2 to the Police Act 1996 and The Police Authority Regulations 2008 to 
appoint the nine councillor members of the Kent Police Authority from 
amongst members of the two appointing councils, having due regard 
to the requirements on the Committee under The Police Authority 
(Community Engagement and Membership) Regulations 2008”. 

 

Recommendation: 
 
2. The Committee is invited to recommend to the County Council the adoption of 
the Terms of Reference for the Kent and Medway Joint Appointments Committee – 
Kent Police Authority for incorporation into the Constitution.  

 

 
Peter Sass: Head of Democratic Services  
 
Officer Contact:  Andrew Tait 
Democratic Services Officer(01622) 694342 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 13 July 2011
	5 Honorary Freemen
	6 Membership of the Standards Committee and the Independent Remuneration Panel
	7 Swale District Advisory Board
	Item 07 Appendix 1
	Item 07 Appendix 2

	8 Kent and Medway Joint Appointments Committee - Kent Police Authority

